

Law by 1/23/88 (p. 102)

MAR 1 1988

Place On Calendar

HOUSE FILE 2363

BY COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE

(Formerly House Study Bill 731)

Passed House, Date 3/4/88 (p. 618)

Passed Senate, Date 5/29/88 (p. 1040)

Vote: Ayes 92 Nays 0

Vote: Ayes 48 Nays 0

Approved April 11, 1988 (p. 1704)

A BILL FOR

1 An Act relating to the control of certain parasitic infestations
2 common to bees by the state apiarist.
3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

- 4
- 5
- 6
- 7
- 8
- 9
- 10
- 11
- 12
- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21
- 22
- 23
- 24
- 25

HF 2363

1 Section 1. Section 160.2, Code 1987, is amended to read as
2 follows:

3 160.2 DUTIES.

4 ~~It shall be the duty of the said~~ The apiarist to shall give
5 lectures and demonstrations in the state on the production of
6 honey, the care of the apiary, the marketing of honey, and
7 upon other kindred subjects relative to the care of bees and
8 the profitable production of honey; to shall examine the
9 bees, combs, and beekeeping appliances in any locality which
10 the apiarist may suspect of being affected with a parasite or
11 foulbrood or any other contagious or infectious disease common
12 to bees; and to shall inspect bees before removal from the
13 state.

14 Sec. 2. Section 160.5, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987,
15 is amended to read as follows:

16 If upon examination the ~~said~~ apiarist finds ~~said~~ bees to be
17 diseased or infested with parasites, the apiarist shall
18 furnish the owner or person in charge of ~~said~~ the apiary with
19 full written instructions as to the nature of the disease or
20 infestation and the best methods of ~~treating same~~ treatment,
21 which information shall be furnished without cost to the
22 owner.

23 Sec. 3. Section 160.9, Code 1987, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 160.9 RULES AUTHORIZED.

26 The state apiarist shall issue rules prohibiting the
27 transportation without a permit of any bees, combs, or used
28 beekeeping appliances, into any area in which clean-up work is
29 being conducted or which has been declared free of any
30 diseases or parasitic infestations of bees.

31 Sec. 4. Section 160.10, Code 1987, is amended to read as
32 follows:

33 160.10 PROHIBITORY ORDERS.

34 When any area is found to be infected with diseases or
35 parasites of bees, the state apiarist shall issue an order

1 prohibiting the movement of bees and used beekeeping
2 appliances out of such area, but shall except from the order
3 bees shipped without honey or feed containing honey and honey
4 sold in tight containers for commercial purposes other than
5 with bees or as food for bees.

6 Sec. 5. Section 160.14, subsection 1, Code 1987, is
7 amended to read as follows:

8 1. A person who knowingly sells, barter, gives away, or
9 moves or allows to be moved, a diseased or parasite infested
10 colony or colonies of bees without the consent of the state
11 apiarist, or exposes infected honey or infected appliances to
12 the bees, or who willfully fails or neglects to give proper
13 treatment to diseased or parasite infested colonies, or who
14 interferes with the state apiarist or the apiarist's
15 assistants in the performance of their official duties or who
16 refuses to permit the examination of bees or their destruction
17 as provided in this chapter or violates another provision of
18 this chapter, except as provided in subsection 2, is guilty of
19 a simple misdemeanor.

20 Sec. 6. Section 160.15, Code 1987, is amended to read as
21 follows:

22 160.15 APPROPRIATION BY COUNTY.

23 All expenses, except salaries, incurred by the state
24 apiarist or the apiarist's assistants in the performance of
25 their duties within a county shall be paid not to exceed two
26 hundred dollars per annum for the purpose of eradication of
27 diseases and parasites among bees. Such work of eradication
28 shall be done in such county under the supervision of the
29 state apiarist.

30 EXPLANATION

31 This bill provides that the state apiarist shall regulate
32 infestations of parasites common to bees.

33 SUCCESSOR TO HSB 731

34
35

HSB 731

Agriculture

Wood

House Study Bill 731

Agriculture: Grubb, Chair, Bennett and Hatch.

HOUSE FILE 2362
BY (PROPOSED COMMITTEE ON
AGRICULTURE BILL)

Passed House, Date _____ Passed Senate, Date _____
Vote: Ayes _____ Nays _____ Vote: Ayes _____ Nays _____
Approved _____

A BILL FOR

1 An Act relating to the control of certain parasitic infestations
2 common to bees by the state apiarist and the collection of an
3 importation fee.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

- 5
- 6
- 7
- 8
- 9
- 10
- 11
- 12
- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21
- 22
- 23
- 24

1 Section 1. Section 160.2, Code 1987, is amended to read as
2 follows:

3 160.2 DUTIES.

4 ~~It shall be the duty of the said~~ The apiarist to shall give
5 lectures and demonstrations in the state on the production of
6 honey, the care of the apiary, the marketing of honey, and
7 upon other kindred subjects relative to the care of bees and
8 the profitable production of honey; to shall examine the
9 bees, combs, and beekeeping appliances in any locality which
10 the apiarist may suspect of being affected with, a parasite,
11 or foulbrood or any other contagious or infectious disease
12 common to bees; and to shall inspect bees before removal from
13 the state.

14 Sec. 2. Section 160.5, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987,
15 is amended to read as follows:

16 If upon examination the ~~said~~ apiarist finds ~~said~~ bees to be
17 diseased or infested with parasites, the apiarist shall
18 furnish the owner or person in charge of ~~said~~ the apiary with
19 full written instructions as to the nature of the disease or
20 infestation and the best methods of ~~treating same~~ treatment,
21 which information shall be furnished without cost to the
22 owner.

23 Sec. 3. Section 160.9, Code 1987, is amended to read as
24 follows:

25 160.9 RULES AUTHORIZED.

26 The state apiarist shall issue rules prohibiting the
27 transportation without a permit of any bees, combs, or used
28 beekeeping appliances, into any area in which clean-up work is
29 being conducted or which has been declared free of any
30 diseases or parasitic infestations of bees.

31 Sec. 4. Section 160.10, Code 1987, is amended to read as
32 follows:

33 160.10 PROHIBITORY ORDERS.

34 When any area is found to be infected with diseases or
35 parasites of bees, the state apiarist shall issue an order

1 prohibiting the movement of bees and used beekeeping
2 appliances out of such area, but shall except from the order
3 bees shipped without honey or feed containing honey and honey
4 sold in tight containers for commercial purposes other than
5 with bees or as food for bees.

6 Sec. 5. Section 160.14, subsection 1, Code 1987, is
7 amended to read as follows:

8 1. A person who knowingly sells, barter, gives away, or
9 moves or allows to be moved, a diseased or parasite infested
10 colony or colonies of bees without the consent of the state
11 apiarist, or exposes infected honey or infected appliances to
12 the bees, or who willfully fails or neglects to give proper
13 treatment to diseased or parasite infested colonies, or who
14 interferes with the state apiarist or the apiarist's
15 assistants in the performance of their official duties or who
16 refuses to permit the examination of bees or their destruction
17 as provided in this chapter or violates another provision of
18 this chapter, except as provided in subsection 2, is guilty of
19 a simple misdemeanor.

20 Sec. 6. Section 160.15, Code 1987, is amended to read as
21 follows:

22 160.15 APPROPRIATION BY COUNTY.

23 All expenses, except salaries, incurred by the state
24 apiarist or the apiarist's assistants in the performance of
25 their duties within a county shall be paid not to exceed two
26 hundred dollars per annum for the purpose of eradication of
27 diseases and parasites among bees. Such work of eradication
28 shall be done in such county under the supervision of the
29 state apiarist.

30 Sec. 7. Section 160.16, Code 1987, is amended to read as
31 follows:

32 160.16 IMPORTING BEES FROM ANOTHER STATE -- FEE.

33 Each colony of bees moved into Iowa from another state by
34 nonresidents of Iowa shall be assessed a fifty-cents one
35 dollar entry fee. The fee, together with the certificate of

1 inspection from the state of origin, shall be collected by the
2 state apiarist who shall forward such fees to the auditor of
3 the county where the bees are to be located. Only
4 nonresidents of Iowa shall be subject to such entry fee.

5 EXPLANATION

6 This bill provides that the state apiarist shall regulate
7 infestations of parasites common to bees. The bill also
8 raises the entry fee for importing bees into this state by
9 nonresidents.

10 COMPANION TO LSB 8175SC

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

AN ACT
RELATING TO THE CONTROL OF CERTAIN PARASITIC INFESTATIONS
COMMON TO BEES BY THE STATE APIARIST.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

Section 1. Section 160.2, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

160.2 DUTIES.

~~It shall be the duty of the said~~ The apiarist to shall give lectures and demonstrations in the state on the production of honey, the care of the apiary, the marketing of honey, and upon other kindred subjects relative to the care of bees and the profitable production of honey; to shall examine the bees, combs, and beekeeping appliances in any locality which ~~the~~ the apiarist may suspect of being affected with a parasite or foulbrood or any other contagious or infectious disease common to bees; and to shall inspect bees before removal from the state.

Sec. 2. Section 160.5, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

If upon examination the ~~said~~ said apiarist finds ~~said~~ said bees to be diseased or infested with parasites, the apiarist shall furnish the owner or person in charge of ~~said~~ said ~~the~~ the apiary with full written instructions as to the nature of the disease or infestation and the best methods of ~~treating-same~~ treatment, which information shall be furnished without cost to the owner.

Sec. 3. Section 160.9, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

160.9 RULES AUTHORIZED.

The state apiarist shall issue rules prohibiting the transportation without a permit of any bees, combs, or used

beekeeping appliances, into any area in which clean-up work is being conducted or which has been declared free of any diseases or parasitic infestations of bees.

Sec. 4. Section 160.10, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

160.10 PROHIBITORY ORDERS.

When any area is found to be infected with diseases or parasites of bees, the state apiarist shall issue an order prohibiting the movement of bees and used beekeeping appliances out of such area, but shall except from the order bees shipped without honey or feed containing honey and honey sold in tight containers for commercial purposes other than with bees or as food for bees.

Sec. 5. Section 160.14, subsection 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

1. A person who knowingly sells, barter, gives away, or moves or allows to be moved, a diseased or parasite infested colony or colonies of bees without the consent of the state apiarist, or exposes infected honey or infected appliances to the bees, or who willfully fails or neglects to give proper treatment to diseased or parasite infested colonies, or who interferes with the state apiarist or the apiarist's assistants in the performance of their official duties or who refuses to permit the examination of bees or their destruction as provided in this chapter or violates another provision of this chapter, except as provided in subsection 2, is guilty of a simple misdemeanor.

Sec. 6. Section 160.15, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

160.15 APPROPRIATION BY COUNTY.

All expenses, except salaries, incurred by the state apiarist or the apiarist's assistants in the performance of their duties within a county shall be paid not to exceed two hundred dollars per annum for the purpose of eradication of diseases and parasites among bees. Such work of eradication

shall be done in such county under the supervision of the
state apiarist.

DONALD D. AVENSON
Speaker of the House

JO ANN ZIMMERMAN
President of the Senate

I hereby certify that this bill originated in the House and
is known as House File 2363, Seventy-second General Assembly.

JOSEPH O'HERN
Chief Clerk of the House

Approved April 11, 1988

TERRY E. BRANSTAD
Governor